
MINUTES
SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE: Tuesday, February 25, 2025
TIME: 1:30 P.M.
PLACE: Room WW54
MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Chairman Foreman, Vice Chairman Lenney, Senators Lakey, Guthrie, Nichols,
Bernt, Ward-Engelking, and Ruchti

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

Senator Zito

NOTE: The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then
be located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

CONVENED: Chairman Foreman called the Senate Commerce and Human Resources
Committee (Committee) to order at 1:30 p.m.

H 104 BUILDING CODE ACT - Amends existing law to provide a definition for
agricultural buildings and that counties shall not alter the provisions of
the section. Senator Shippy stated this legislation created a unified and
singular definition for "Agricultural Buildings" across all local jurisdictions. He
noted this legislation caused no additional expenditure of funds at the State or
local level of government; therefore, the legislation had no fiscal impact.

Senator Shippy reported that under this legislation, agriculture buildings were
defined as those that housed or stored agricultural commodities or equipment
used in production. Agricultural buildings did not include processing facilities,
human habitation, retail facilities, or buildings open to the public. Senator
Shippy yielded his time to Braden Jensen, Idaho Farm Bureau.

TESTIMONY: Braden Jensen, Idaho Farm Bureau, noted that this legislation defined
"Agricultural Buildings" and what type of building qualified.

DISCUSSION: Senator Nichols asked Mr. Jensen to provide an example of what these
buildings had looked like. Mr. Jensen explained that the bill aimed to ensure
a unified definition of an agricultural building. The purpose of the building had
been to house agricultural items such as equipment or livestock.

TESTIMONY: Bob Naerebout, Idaho Dairymen's Association, testified in support of the bill.
He explained animal housing buildings were becoming larger and now included
a break room and a restroom could be added. He noted that some counties had
required a commercial permit for these additions and were not exempt under
agriculture. This bill would have eliminated the need for a commercial permit.

MOTION: Senator Guthrie moved to send H 104 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Nichols seconded the motion. The motion carried
by voice vote.

H 86 BUILDING CODE - Adds to existing law to prohibit laws that require
electric vehicle charging stations or parking spaces in any building plan
to provide for preemption of local laws and ordinances. Representative
Palmer noted this legislation preempted local governments from imposing
any requirements to install or maintain electric vehicle (EV) charging stations
or parking spaces at their facilities. This legislation caused no increase or
decrease in revenue, or additional expenditure of funds at the State or local
level of government; therefore, this legislation had no fiscal impact.



DISCUSSION: Senator Nichols queried if this bill addressed commercial, residential, and
industrial buildings. Representative Palmer confirmed that it did.

Senator Ward-Engelking inquired if the bill affected cities that already
had the requirement in place. Representative Palmer stated that if an EV
charging station was already installed, it could not be removed. Senator
Ward-Engelking mentioned that the only instance she had heard of was the
City of Boise working through the requirement for EV charging stations at the
Ada County Jail. She stated that this bill preempted local control and city
government. Representative Palmer reiterated that this was exactly what the
bill did. He noted that the Association of Cities had initially opposed the bill
but were now in support of it.

TESTIMONY: Lisa Hecht, representing herself and a retired electrical engineer and computer
program manager at Hewlett-Packard, testified in opposition to this bill. She
had been an EV owner for several years and was concerned about the bill's
impact on smaller cities and rural towns. She noted that the bill reduced the
number of charging stations and questioned why people would be deprived
of that opportunity. She explained that those using the EV charging stations
brought revenue to the town while waiting for their EVs to charge. She urged a
no vote to keep planning and decision making in the hands of local officials.

Jonathan Oppenheimer, Idaho Conservation League, Government Relations
Director, testified in opposition to the bill. He expressed that he did not want
the infrastructure to be dismantled. He mentioned that Idaho had the potential
to generate more electricity and suggested there could be a process to file for
a variance to challenge local control. He emphasized that Idaho needed to
plan for the future. Representative Palmer noted that the market determined
the installation of EV stations. He clarified that the bill did not mandate the
installation of EV charging stations, but they could be installed at any time
if an owner chose to do so.

DISCUSSION: Senator Ward-Engelking remarked that the bill appeared to address an issue
that had emerged in Ada County. She mentioned that 20 percent of cars
purchased in the U.S. had been either electric or hybrid. She noted that the
cost of installing an EV station during construction was approximately $5,000,
whereas retrofitting an EV station cost around $15,000. Representative
Palmer explained that the $5,000 cost applied if the EV station was located
close to the electrical source; the farther away, the higher the cost. He also
noted that the number of electric and hybrid cars had decreased. Senator
Ward-Engelking stated that the codes were developed by cities and that
the City of Boise had received significant input from citizens. She expressed
uncertainty about whether the State should intervene in local county and city
matters. Representative Palmer responded that the State was responsible for
the building code.

Senator Nichols remarked that it seemed EV charging stations had been
required in some areas. She asked who was responsible for maintaining these
stations. Representative Palmer replied that it was the property owner's
responsibility. Senator Nichols noted that many charging stations across the
nation had not been maintained, which made her question how many people
actually wanted them.

MOTION: Vice Chairman Lenney moved to send H 86 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Nichols seconded the motion.

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, February 25, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



DISCUSSION: Vice Chairman Lenney expressed that he believed the bill was beneficial. He
noted that it was unfair to mandate EV stations.

Senator Lakey remarked that while he respected local government, he also
valued consistency. He stated that the building code was about health and
safety and should be consistent across the State. He believed the market could
and should address this issue and expressed his support for the motion.

Senator Ward-Engelking stated that the City of Boise had conducted hearings
and ensured everything was in place. She noted that fully electric vehicle sales
had increased and did not include hybrids. She was uncertain if the trend was
declining and expressed her opposition to the bill.

VOICE VOTE: The motion to send H 86 to the floor with a do pass recommendation carried
by voice vote. Senators Ruchti and Ward-Engelking requested they be
recorded as voting nay.

MINUTES
APPROVAL:

Senator Bernt moved to approve the Minutes of February 13, 2025. Vice
Chairman Lenney seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

MINUTES
APPROVAL:

Senator Guthrie moved to approve the Minutes of February 18, 2025. Senator
Ruchti seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

GUBERNATORIAL
REAPPOINTMENT:

Committee Consideration of the Gubernatorial Reappointment of Nancy
Merrill of Eagle, Idaho, to the Idaho Personnel Commission (IPC), to serve
a term commencing July 1, 2024 and to expire July 1, 2030. Ms. Merrill
gave an overview of her experience. She enjoyed the IPC and wanted to
continue to serve.

DISCUSSION: Senator Lakey expressed his appreciation for Ms. Merrill's years of service.
He asked how her service as Mayor of the City of Eagle and the IPC had
benefited her. Ms. Merrill responded that she had learned to collaborate,
build consensus, and listen to people, which had helped her learn. She also
mentioned that she had learned to be prepared with information and materials
to handle various tasks.
Chairman Foreman stated the Committee would vote at the next meeting.

H 116 INSURANCE - Amends and repeals existing law to remove the Idaho
Small Employer Carrier Reinsurance Program (SECRP). Dean Cameron,
Director, Idaho Department of Insurance (DOI), explained that the legislation
had repealed the Idaho SECRP, which had no active carrier members and was
no longer necessary. He noted that the legislation had no impact on the State's
General Fund, any dedicated fund, or federal fund because the program had
been supported by member health insurers.

MOTION: Senator Guthrie moved to send H 116 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Bernt seconded the motion. The motion carried by
voice vote.

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, February 25, 2025—Minutes—Page 3



H 71 ACQUISITIONS OF CONTROL AND INSURANCE HOLDING COMPANY
SYSTEMS - Amends and adds to existing law to revise and establish
provisions regarding insurance holding company systems. Dean
Cameron, Director, Idaho Department of Insurance (DOI), explained that the
purpose of the legislation had been to add uniform standards for certain insurers
and registered insurance holding company systems, under Idaho Code, Title 41,
Chapter 38, to file the Group Capital Calculation and the Liquidity Stress Test.
These separate regulatory filings had been tools for monitoring solvency. They
were necessary for the Idaho DOI to maintain accreditation with the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) and for Idaho's regulatory
authority to be reciprocated in all U.S. jurisdictions and certain recognized
non-U.S. jurisdictions. Mr. Cameron stated that the legislation had no impact
on the State's General Fund, any dedicated fund, or federal fund because it
added regulatory filings for a limited number of licensees. The review had
been designed to fit into the existing regulatory framework and group-wide
supervision activities already in place at the DOI and in Idaho insurance law.

TESTIMONY: Jeff Neumeyer, United Heritage, Chief Administrative Officer and General
Counsel, testified in support of the bill. He explained that passing the bill had
been crucial for his company to be domiciled in Idaho and to remain in the
City of Meridian. He emphasized that accreditation had been paramount and
that the expense and regulatory hurdles would have been catastrophic if not
accredited. The American Council of Life Insurers had supported the bill. Mr.
Cameron remarked that maintaining accreditation was important and that
passing the bill had helped keep companies in Idaho.

MOTION: Senator Lakeymoved to send H 71 to the floor with a do pass recommendation.
Senator Ruchti seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

ADJOURNED: There being no further business at this time, Chairman Foreman adjourned the
meeting at 2:23 p.m.

___________________________ ___________________________
Senator Foreman Linda Kambeitz
Chair Secretary

SENATE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Tuesday, February 25, 2025—Minutes—Page 4


